
Local Development 
Framework Task
Group
Agenda

Wednesday, 13th July, 2016
at 10.00 am

in the

Miles Room
Town Hall
Saturday Market Place 
King’s Lynn



If you require parts of this document in another  language, large print, audio, Braille or any alternative 

format please contact the Council Information Centre on 01553 616200 and we will do our best to 

help.

LATVIAN
Ja Jums nepieciešamas daļas no šī dokumenta citā valodā, lielā drukā, audio, Braila rakstā vai 

alternatīvā formātā, lūdzu, sazinieties ar Padomes informācijas centru (Council Information Centre) pa 

01553 616200 un mēs centīsimies Jums palīdzēt.

RUSSIAN
Если вам нужны части этого документа на другом языке, крупным шрифтом, шрифтом Брайля, 

в аудио- или ином формате, обращайтесь в Информационный Центр Совета по тел.: 01553 

616200, и мы постараемся вам помочь.

LITHUANIAN
Jei pageidaujate tam tikros šio dokumento dalies kita kalba, dideliu šriftu, Brailio raštu, kitu formatu ar 

norite užsisakyti garso įrašą, susisiekite su Savivaldybės informacijos centru (Council Information 

Centre) telefonu 01553 616200 ir mes pasistengsime jums kiek įmanoma padėti.

POLISH
Jeśli pragną Państwo otrzymać fragmenty niniejszego dokumentu w innym języku, w dużym druku, w 

formie nagrania audio, alfabetem Braille’a lub w jakimkolwiek innym alternatywnym formacie, prosimy 

o kontakt z Centrum Informacji Rady pod numerem 01553 616200, zaś my zrobimy, co możemy, by 

Państwu pomóc.

PORTUGUESE
Se necessitar de partes deste documento em outro idioma, impressão grande, áudio, Braille ou 

qualquer outro formato alternativo, por favor contacte o Centro de Informações do Município pelo 

01553 616200, e faremos o nosso melhor para ajudar.



King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200
Fax: 01553 691663

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT 
FRAMEWORK TASK GROUP 

AGENDA

DATE: WEDNESDAY, 13TH JULY, 2016

VENUE: TOWN HALL, SATURDAY MARKET PLACE, 
KING'S LYNN

TIME: 10.00 am

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 8)

To agree the notes of the previous meeting held on 8 June 2016. 

3.  MATTERS ARISING 

To consider any matters arising. 

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared.  A 
declaration of interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not already 
declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it relates.  
If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the Member should withdraw 
from the room whilst the matter is discussed.

These declarations apply to all members present, whether the Member is part 
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply 
observing the meeting from the public seating area.



 

5.  MEMBERS ATTENDING UNDER STANDING ORDER 34 

Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the 
Chairman of their intention to do so and what items they wish to be heard 
before the meeting commences.  Any Member attending the meeting under 
Standing Order 34 will only be permitted to speak on those items which have 
been previously notified to the Chairman.

 

6.  PLAN  REVIEW - CONSIDERATION OF STRATEGIC OPTIONS FOR 
GROWTH (Pages 9 - 29)

7.  CIL UPDATE (Page 30)

8.  EAST OF ENGLAND FORECASTING MODEL - LATEST FINDINGS (Pages 
31 - 33)

9.  SITE ALLOCATIONS & DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT POLICIES - 
VERBAL UPDATE 

10.  NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANS - VERBAL UPDATE 

11.  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

To note that the next scheduled meeting of the LDF Task Group will be held 
on Wednesday 10 August 2016 at 10 am in the Miles Room, Town Hall, 
Saturday Market Place. 

To: Members of the Local Development Framework Task Group

Councillors B Ayres, R Blunt (Chairman), Mrs S Buck, C Crofts, J Moriarty, 
M Peake (Vice-Chairman), D Tyler and Mrs E Watson

For Further information, please contact:

Wendy Vincent
Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk
King’s Court, Chapel Street
King’s Lynn PE30 1EX



1

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK TASK GROUP

Minutes from the Meeting of the Local Development Framework Task Group 
held on Wednesday, 8th June, 2016 at 10.00 am in the Meeting Rooms 1 and 

2, King's Court

PRESENT: Councillor R Blunt (Chairman)
Councillors A Bubb, P Colvin, J Moriarty and M Peake.

Officers:
Alex Fradley – Graduate Planner
Alan Gomm – LDF Manager
Jemma March - Planner

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor D Tyler.

2  NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The notes of the meeting held on 6 April 2016 were agreed as a correct 
record.

3  MATTERS ARISING 

Statement of Community Involvement

The LDF Manager explained that the Statement of Community 
Involvement had been presented to Cabinet.  The results of the 
consultation would be presented to Cabinet and Council once the 
consultation deadline had passed.

Phased Approach for Financial Contributions

At the previous meeting the Chairman had undertook to discuss a 
phased approach for financial contributions at his next Portfolio 
Briefing.  The Chairman, Councillor Blunt agreed to circulate a note to 
the Task Group on this issue.

Commuted Sums – Section 106 Agreements

At the previous meeting the Chairman had undertook to discuss this 
issue and feedback to the Task Group.  The Chairman agreed to 
circulate and update to the Task Group.

Flitcham

5

Agenda Item 2



2

The Task Group was informed that the allocation for Flitcham had been 
removed because it was unacceptable on highways grounds.

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

5  MEMBERS ATTENDING UNDER STANDING ORDER 34 

There was none.

6  PREPARATION OF LOCAL PLAN REVIEW 

The LDF Manager provided an update of the Council’s current position 
and the process required to take the plan through to adoption, as set 
out in his report which had been included in the Agenda.

He explained that currently the Local Plan was in two parts; the Core 
Strategy and the Site Allocations and Development Management Plan 
Policies Plan.  Once the SADMP had been adopted both plans would 
be reviewed and combined to form the overall Local Plan.

The LDF Manager outlined the process to be followed and the role of 
the Task Group in reviewing the documents to ensure that they 
remained fit for purpose.  

The LDF Manager referred to Appendix 1 of his report which outlined 
the steps and subjects requiring consideration by the Task Group. 

The LDF Manager referred to Appendix 2 of the report, which provided 
extracts from the Core Strategy.  He explained that the Task Group 
would need to review the content to ensure that it was still relevant.  
The Task Group made the following comments on the content of the 
Core Strategy extracts provided in the agenda:

 The Vision required amending and more detail to be provided.
 The approach to sustainability was over ambitious and required 

amendment.
 There was a still reliance on the car and this should be acknowledged 

and accepted.
 The provision of broadband and communication infrastructure should 

be included.
 Reflect on tourism.
 Employment and working from home and the work/life balance.
 Changing demographics and changes to society
 Carbon emissions and the encouragement of passive housing.
 The approach to Downham Market should be amended.

6



3

 The approach to Key Rural Service Centres and how they could be 
supported.

 The approach to flood risk and working with the Environment Agency.

The LDF Manager explained that the next step would be for the Task 
Group to steer the updates to the Local Plan documents.  He explained 
that revised wording would be presented to the next meeting of the 
Task Group for consideration.  The Portfolio Holder would also ensure 
that the Cabinet were informed of the process.

The LDF Manager explained that the Local Plan would be examined by 
the Inspectorate and a public consultation process would be required, 
however, it was hoped that the process could be streamlined. 

7  EXAMINATION PROCESS FOR SADMP - VERBAL UPDATE 

The LDF Manager explained that the Main Modifications consultation 
period had closed and 317 representations had been received from 
170 different people or organisations.  The Task Group were provided 
with an overview of what the majority of the representations related to.  
The representations would be forwarded to the Inspector, who would 
take a view as to if the representations were considered significant.

8  UPDATE ON CONSULTATION ON THE 'MAJOR MODIFICATIONS' - 
VERBAL UPDATE 

The Task Group was informed that the closing date for the consultation 
period on the Major Modifications was 22nd June and four 
representations had been received to date.

The LDF Manager explained that it was hoped that the Inspectors 
report would be forthcoming by the end of July.  The Inspectors 
recommendations would then require Cabinet and Council approval.

9  NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANS - VERBAL UPDATE 

The Task Group was informed that there were currently four 
consultations ongoing for Neighbourhood Plans, as follows:

 Snettisham
 Tilney All Saints
 West Dereham
 Sedgeford

10  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Local Development Framework Task Group 
was scheduled to take place on Wednesday 13 July at 10.00am in the 
Miles Room, Town Hall, Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn.

7



4

The meeting closed at 12.00 pm

8



Borough Council of King’s and West Norfolk Local 
Plan Review (2016 – 2036): 

Consideration of Strategic Options for Growth

9

Agenda Item 6



1 | P a g e

Summary

This discussion paper has been prepared in order to explore a number of potential strategic growth 

options for the Borough of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk as part of the Local Plan Review, which 

covers a 20 year time period from 2016 to 2036.  

The previous approach seen through the Core Strategy and the Site Allocations and Development 

Management Policies Plan Document, with development focused towards King’s Lynn and the higher 

order settlements of the Settlement Hierarchy, is highlighted and the theory behind this approach is 

outlined.

The paper then moves on to the potential strategic growth options, outlining the level of growth 

required (in the region of 4,000 new dwellings) through the site allocation process over the Local 

Plan Review time period. Then five potential options are presented in detail for where this growth 

might be distributed and accommodated across the Borough.  The five options presented are; 

Option 1 King’s Lynn Area, Option 2 Spread Development, Option 3 Rural Focus, Option 4 New 

Settlement, and Option 5 Wisbech Fringe.

The options are then subject to an initial Sustainability Appraisal, based upon information currently 

available. The results of this are then discussed in detail in relation to the Borough’s 20 Sustainability 

Objectives. 

Analysis of Sustainability Appraisal illustrates that all five options result in overall positive effects; 

with Option 2 Spread Development Scoring (+11) the highest, and Option 3 Rural Focus (+4) scoring 

the least positive. Option 5 Wisbech Fringe scored the second highest (+10), although there is work 

progressing in this area, there is a degree of uncertainty. Option 1 King’s Lynn Area (+7), scored 

positively although locations for multiple new large scale allocations may be difficult to identify 

given potential impacts upon sites allocated through the Site Allocations and Development 

Management, and the local areas.  Option  4 New Settlement (+6), scores well however there is a 

degree of uncertainty as at this stage a broad location has not been identified.  

The paper concludes that although at an early stage in discussions, the sustainability appraisal 

illustrates that a growth option which proposes to spread the required growth across the Borough is 

a sustainable one; it supports the previous Local Plan, Settlement Hierarchy and development 

proposals within and close to the Borough. However the detail of the spread is still available 

discussion.

10



2 | P a g e

Contents

Summary.....................................................................................................................1

1. Previous Approach to the Distribution of Development .....................................3

2. Potential Growth Options for the Local Plan Review ..........................................6

3. Initial Appraisal of The Growth Options. ...........................................................13

4. Discussion ..........................................................................................................15

5. Conclusion .........................................................................................................19

11



3 | P a g e

1. Previous Approach to the Distribution of Development

1.1 The Core Strategy (adopted 2011) through its policies sought to distribute development in 

accordance with the settlement hierarchy to sustainable locations. The aim was therefore to 

deliver 90% of the new housing development, including allocations, across the top four tiers 

of the settlement hierarchy, as illustrated in the table below:

King’s Lynn (inc West Lynn), 
Main Towns (Downham Market 
& Hunstanton), Adjacent 
Settlements (Wisbech Fringe, 
West Winch, North & South 
Wootton)

73%

KRSC 17%
90%

Rural Villages 8%
Other 2%

10%
Total 100% 100%

1.2 The results of using this method in the allocation process through the SADMP (Site 

Allocations and Development Management Policies Plan) are shown in table below:

King’s Lynn (inc West Lynn), 
Main Towns (Downham Market 
& Hunstanton), Adjacent 
Settlements (Wisbech Fringe, 
West Winch, North & South 
Wootton)

82%

KRSC 14%
96%

Rural Villages 4%
Other 0

4%
Total 100% 100%

1.3 For the purpose of exploring the distribution of allocations made through the SADMP, the 

settlements have been broken down in line with this plan, as can be seen below:

12



4 | P a g e

    

1.4 The theory for this distribution method being employed at the time is set out as follows: 

King’s Lynn receiving the majority of the Borough’s overall growth would enable the town to 

deliver the services and facilities necessary for a sub-regional centre for the present and into 

the future. The town was also identified in 2008 as a Growth Point. With allocated growth 

focused on, but not limited to, urban extensions (to the north, north east and south) and the 

regeneration of existing built-up areas.  The largest area for urban expansion is the 

extension to south (West Winch / North Runcton). 

1.5 At Downham Market growth was envisaged here to maintain the town’s status as the 

second town within the Borough and to support its role of being the main service centre and 

focus for employment for the southern part of the Borough. The provision of new houses 

here was carefully balanced in order to redress inadequacies within existing level of services 

within the town at that time. This combined with previous rapid growth of the town resulted 

in a lower proportion of the Borough’s new growth being allocated here, compared to 

others, in order to provide a slower pace of growth enabling the town to settle and for 

services and facilities to adjust to the increase in population. With the north east, east and 

south east areas of the settlement earmarked as appropriate areas for urban extensions. 

One of the three proposed allocations was removed from the preferred options version of 

the plan to assist this process.  

1.6 For Hunstanton the focus was ensuring that as a main town, the third town in the Borough, 

its position as a successful service hub for the local area was maintained, while 

strengthening its role as a tourist destination all year-round. New allocations were sought 

King’s Lynn & Surrounding 
Area (West Lynn, West Winch / 
North Runcton, Hall Lane and 
Knights Hill South Wootton) 

62% 3,926

Wisbech Fringe 9% 550
Downham Market 6% 390
Hunstanton 5% 333
KRSC 14% 852
Rural Villages 4% 243
Other 0 0

100% 6,294

13



5 | P a g e

through extensions to east and south of the settlement. The Wisbech Fringe area was 

identified in order to support the function of Wisbech Town within the area. Wisbech is the 

largest settlement within Fenland and has a significant range of services and facilities. It is an 

important destination for the surrounding rural settlements, a number of which are within 

West Norfolk. The town borders West Norfolk and as such is an appropriate area to 

facilitate, in co-operation with Fenland District Council, an urban extension area.   

1.7 The strategy for rural areas was to promote sustainable communities and sustainable 

patterns of development. Thus ensuring that these settlements are able to continue to 

provide essential services and facilities to serve the local community. It is important to note 

that the approach to the distribution allocations in rural areas of the Borough considered 

appropriate for allocation, Key Rural Service Centres and Rural Villages, was carried out 

broadly based upon allocating proportionally to the existing population. Although this was 

not rigidly applied due to either constraints being identified, such as flood risk or lack of safe 

highway access, that resulted in a lower allocation. Opportunities, such as new facilities at 

Burnham Market and Stoke Ferry, resulted in a higher allocation. 

1.8 The numbers for each class within CS02 The Settlement Hierarchy is expressed as a 

minimum so this figure could be exceed and indeed to provide further flexibility, through a 

main modification, the SADMP allocations are expressed as ‘of at least x number of 

dwellings’. Furthermore, although all of the settlements in each class has an equivalent 

status in terms of planned function, their ability to accommodate growth, and the 

sustainability in each, does vary significantly.

14



6 | P a g e

2. Potential Growth Options for the Local Plan Review 

2.1 How Much Growth is needed?

2.1.1 The Local Plan Review stretches beyond the time period covered by the Core Strategy 

(CS) and the Site Allocations and Development Management Polices plan (SADMP), 

which covers 2001 – 2026. The review will cover an additional 10 years from 2016 -2036, 

20 years in total. This means that based upon the Borough Council’s latest Full 

Objectively Assessed Need (FOAN) of 710 dwellings each year, between 2016 and 2036 a 

minimum of 14,200 dwellings (710 x 20) will need to complete. It is anticipated that this 

figure will be contributed to by existing planning permission and existing allocations, the 

total dwelling contribution from these sources currently stands at 10,285. This results in 

4,000, (3,915), dwellings to find through the allocation process in order to achieve the 

number required.

2.1.2 It is important to note firstly one thrust of the NPPF and Government’s appetite in 

‘significantly boosting the supply the housing’ and secondly the need to factor in a 

degree of flexibility.  For example the existing SADMP allocations will have a degree of 

flexibility built in, as the dwelling number is to be expressed as ‘at least x number of 

dwellings’. We have already seen a number of allocations coming forward for a higher 

number of dwellings than the minimum stated. The figure will also be added to by the 

contribution of windfall development i.e. development on unallocated sites that will 

come forward in the period up to 2036.

2.1.3 Secondly, changes to the planning system through the Housing and Planning Act 2016 

such as brownfield sites gaining planning permission in principle and through potential 

future changes to the NPPF such as minor residential sites (not major sites) adjacent to 

settlement boundaries are potentially able to gain planning permission in principle. 

These potential dwelling sources would contribute to the number of windfall dwellings 

coming forward and the overall number dwellings delivered over the plan period. It may 

also result in a shift in the allocation process, as smaller sites surrounding lower tier 

settlements if adjacent to the development boundary may not require allocation to 

come forward. 

15



7 | P a g e

2.1.4 Once the right levels of growth have been established, consideration needs to be given 

to where that growth is best located across the Borough.

2.2 Where Can This Growth Go?

2.2.1 Sustainable development should contribute to achieving improvements in the economic, 

social and environmental aspects of this. National planning policy states that 

development should be distributed in a way which reduces the need to travel, promotes 

regeneration of brownfield sites, promotes and retains existing services and supports 

rural areas. It is also important to consider the effects on existing infrastructure and the 

environment of different settlements growing. National planning policy also encourages 

Local Planning Authorities to consider if growth could be accommodated through new 

settlements, following the principal of Garden Cities.    

2.2.2 How these 4,000 dwellings, sought through allocations, are distributed across the 

Borough is matter for detailed analysis and commentary. Here five different potential 

options in order to achieve the required level of growth are presented for discussion.  

The options cover a range of topics some of the headlines include options that propose 

significantly less growth for King’s Lynn allowing the SADMP allocations, in particular the 

large urban extensions at West Winch/North Runcton and the two at South Wootton 

(Hall Lane and Knights Hill) room to establish. Other issues discussed are the large scale 

urban extension to Wisbech that will follow the Garden City principle, highlighted within 

East Anglia Devolution proposals. The works being undertaken at Ely North Junction that 

would facilitate a half hourly train service through the Borough, and the proposals at 

Downham Market for a Centre of Advanced Knowledge and Engineering. It might be that 

ideas across a number of the options are taken forward. Next the five options are 

presented:   

16



8 | P a g e

Option 1 King’s Lynn Area – This option is broadly in-line with CS02 The Settlement Hierarchy and 

aims to focus 50% of new growth through residential allocations at King’s Lynn as the sub-regional 

centre. An equal amount of growth, 15%, is distributed to Downham Market, Wisbech Fringe and 

the Key Rural Services Centres.  Downham Market is the second Main Town, and Wisbech has been 

earmarked for a large-scale extension following the Garden City principles, this is highlighted within 

the East Anglia Devolution proposals. The land within the Borough surrounding Wisbech is relatively 

constraint free and could be utilised to support the scheme.   A smaller portion of the growth, 5%, is 

attributed to the Rural Villages. No allocation is proposed for Hunstanton due to lack of potential 

land availability outside of the development boundary, which doesn’t impinge on surrounding 

settlements.   

Option 1 King’s 
Lynn Area

% of 
Growth

No. of 
Dwellings

King’s Lynn & 
Surrounding 
Area

50% 2,000

Wisbech Fringe 15% 600
Downham 
Market

15% 600

Hunstanton 0 0
KRSC 15% 600
Rural Villages 5% 200
Watlington n/a 0
New Settlement 0 0
 

17



9 | P a g e

Option 2 Spread Development – As the title suggests the approach with this option is to spread 

the development across the Borough more evenly than other options, yet still have regard to CS02 

The Settlement Hierarchy. 30% of the new growth through residential allocations is proposed for 

King’s Lynn. With 20% attributed to Downham Market, Wisbech Fringe, and the Key Rural Service 

Centres. This option supports the Wisbech Garden City Style urban extension, highlighted within the 

East Anglia Devolution proposals, and supports proposals at Downham Market for a Centre for 

Advanced Knowledge and Engineering (CAKE), which they anticipate will generate in the region of 

6,000 jobs.  The Key Rural Service Centres are supported, as these offer a range of services and 

facilities to their local population which could facilitate future growth.  A smaller portion of the 

growth, 10%, is attributed to the Rural Villages to support the more rural areas of the Borough. No 

growth through allocation is proposed for Hunstanton, as explained in Option 1.

Option 2 Spread 
Development

% of 
Growth

No. of 
Dwellings

King’s Lynn & 
Surrounding 
Area

30% 1,200

Wisbech Fringe 20% 800
Downham 
Market

20% 800

Hunstanton 0 0
KRSC 20% 800
Rural Villages 10% 400
Watlington n/a 0
New Settlement 0 0
 

18



10 | P a g e

Option 3 Rural Focus – This option recognises the importance that the rural settlements provide 

within the Borough and growth is focused to these areas, with 25% of new growth through 

residential allocations attributed to Key Rural Service Centres and 15% attributed to Rural Villages. 

Like Option 2 King’s Lynn would receive 30% of the growth, whilst Downham Market and Wisbech 

Fringe would receive slightly less at the 15% mark. Again for reasons explained in Option 1 no 

growth allocations are proposed for Hunstanton. One proposed change is the allocation of growth 

specified for one of the Key Rural Service Centres, Watlington. This may result in an amendment to 

CS02 The Settlement Hierarchy. Watlington would receive 10% of the required growth; this 

settlement has been singled out as it benefits from a range of local services and facilities including 

importantly a train station on the main line from King’s Lynn to Cambridge and London King’s Cross.  

There is work in progress by the Ely North Junction Task force to ensure that the proposed upgrade 

to the Ely North Junction takes place, this would facilitate a half hourly rail service to Downham 

Market, Cambridge and London King’s Cross travelling south from Watlington and to King’s Lynn, 

travelling north.   

  

Option 3 Rural 
Focus

% of 
Growth

No. of 
Dwellings

King’s Lynn & 
Surrounding 
Area

30% 1,200

Wisbech Fringe 15% 600
Downham 
Market

15% 600

Hunstanton 0 0
KRSC 25% 1000
Rural Villages 15% 600
Watlington 10% 400
New Settlement 0 0

19



11 | P a g e

Option 4 New Settlement – This option explores the potential for a new settlement within the 

Borough of King’s and West Norfolk to be created. A broad location for this new settlement is not 

provided here, it would potentially require the lion share of proposed new growth being attributed 

to it, and of course consideration to the overall size, and impacts of a new settlement could have 

would need to be taken into consideration and investigated further. As highlighted this is a growth 

option that the Government is keen for Local planning Authorities to explore, following the Garden 

City principles.  Within this option 50% of the growth is attributed to the potential new settlement, 

whilst King’s Lynn is still supported with 20% of the growth attributed. The Garden City style 

extension proposals for Wisbech are also supported with 10% of growth attributed to the land 

surrounding the town. The remainder of the growth is distributed to Downham Market, Key Rural 

Service Centres and Rural Villages.

Option 4 New 
Settlement

% of 
Growth

No. of 
Dwellings

King’s Lynn & 
Surrounding 
Area

20% 800

Wisbech Fringe 10% 400
Downham 
Market

5% 200

Hunstanton 0 0
KRSC 10% 400
Rural Villages 5% 200
Watlington n/a 0
New Settlement 50% 2,000

20



12 | P a g e

Option 5 Wisbech Fringe – Wisbech has been earmarked for a large-scale urban extension that 

will follow the Garden City principle; this is highlighted within East Anglia Devolution proposals. The 

land within the Borough surrounding the town of Wisbech is relatively constraint free and could be 

utilised to firmly support the scheme. The reminder of the required growth is distributed broadly 

according to CS02 The Settlement Hierarchy, with King’s Lynn supported through 30% of growth 

being directed here, the main settlement within the Borough. Downham Market receiving 10%, 15% 

awarded to Key Rural Service Centres and the reaming 5% to Rural Villages.  

 

Option 5 
Wisbech Fringe

% of 
Growth

No. of 
Dwellings

King’s Lynn & 
Surrounding 
Area

30% 1,200

Wisbech Fringe 40% 1,600
Downham 
Market

10% 400

Hunstanton 0 0
KRSC 15% 600
Rural Villages 5% 200
Watlington n/a 0
New Settlement 0 0

21



13 | P a g e

3. Initial Appraisal of The Growth Options.

3.1 In order to determine the most appropriate option for growth in the Borough it is necessary 

to assess the options against the Borough’s sustainability criteria. This assessment helps to 

determine which option is most likely to achieve sustainable development and therefore 

should be pursued in the Local Plan. 

3.2 A secondary important factor is the deliverability of the options; considering the likelihood 

of growth actually happening according to the option presented. All five options are possible 

to deliver using policies and allocations in the Local Plan, but some are more likely to 

happen. An example of where an option is more likely is in instances where it is known there 

is a lot of available land for housing in the area, or where there are policies already in place 

to encourage further growth at that location. An option is less likely to be deliverable where 

the market value of land is low, there is little interest from landowners to develop or where 

there is already an existing permission or allocation which has not yet been delivered.

3.3 The appraisals have been undertaken using the best available evidence and information at 

the time. As the Local Plan preparation progresses, options will be refined and new options 

may be considered. Additionally, further evidence will be collected which will help improve 

and refine the appraisals. 

Key to the Sustainability Appraisal scoring

Effect Symbol
Significant Positive ++
Positive +
Neutral 0
Depends on implementation +/-
Unknown ?
Negative -
Significant Negative - -

22



14 | P a g e

Sustainability Objective

O
pt

io
n 

1
Ki

ng
’s

 L
yn

n 
Ar

ea

O
pt

io
n 

2
Sp

re
ad

 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
O

pt
io

n 
3

Ru
ra

l F
oc

us

O
pt

io
n 

4
N

ew
 S

et
tle

m
en

t

O
pt

io
n 

5
W

is
be

ch
 F

rin
ge

1. Minimise the irreversible loss of undeveloped land and 
productive agricultural holdings.

- - - - - - -? - -

2. Minimise waste and reduce the use of non-renewable 
energy sources.

- - - - -

3. Limit water consumption to levels supportable by natural 
processes and storage system.

- - - - -

4. Avoid damage to designated sites and protected species. - + + ? +
5. Maintain and enhance the range and viability of 
characteristic habitats and species.

0 0 0 0 0

6. Avoid damage to protected sites and historic buildings 
and archaeology

? + -? ? +

7. Maintain and enhance the diversity and distinctiveness of 
landscape and townscape character

? + -? ? +

8. Create places, spaces and buildings that work well, wear 
well and look good

++ ++ ++ ++ ++

9. Reduce emissions of greenhouse gasses and other 
pollutants (including air, water, soil, noise, vibration and 
light)

- - - - - -  - -

10. Minimise waste production and support the recycling of 
waste products

- - - - -

11. Limit or reduce vulnerability to the effects of climate 
change (including flooding)

+/- + - ? -

12. Maintain and enhance human health + + + + +

13. Reduce and prevent crime, and reduce the fear of crime + + + + +
14. Improve the quantity and quality of publicly accessible 
open space

++ ++ ++ ++ ++

15. Improve the quality, range and accessibility of services 
and facilities (e.g. health, transport, education, training, 
leisure opportunities)

+ + + + +

16. Redress inequalities related to age, gender, disability, 
race, faith, location and income

+ + + + +

17. Ensure all groups have access to decent, appropriate and 
affordable housing

++ ++ ++ ++ ++

18. Encourage and enable the active involvement of local 
people in community activities

+ + + + +

19. Help people gain access to satisfying work appropriate 
to their skills, potential and place of residence

++ ++ + ? ++

20. Improve the efficiency, competitiveness and adaptability 
of the local economy

+ + + + +

23



15 | P a g e

4. Discussion

4.1 Land and Water Resources (Sustainability objectives 1,2,3)

4.1.1  All options for growth would result in the loss of undeveloped land due to the shortage 

of available brownfield land available in the Borough. There is insufficient brownfield 

sites available to accommodate the level of housing required to address the housing 

need. Prior to the identification of specific sites, it is difficult to determine the 

proportion of brownfield which could be used for new housing and whether any one 

growth option would utilise more brownfield sites than another. However in King’s Lynn 

and the Main Towns there is virtually no brownfield land remaining that has not already 

been allocated in previous Local Plan documents. 

4.1.2 A large proportion of the Borough is undeveloped, productive agricultural land and new 

growth will inevitably increase water consumption, result in more waste and increase 

the use of non-renewable energy sources and therefore will have a generally negative 

score against these SA criteria. However, future policies in the plan and specific design 

details should seek to ensure the use of sustainable construction methods, materials and 

encourage the use of renewable energy sources and sustainable drainage systems, 

therefore minimising the negative impact as far as practicable. 

4.1.3  The main uncertainty relates to option 4 for a new settlement. There are no known 

available, viable large brownfield sites such as former airstrips which have been 

promoted to the Council previously. However, a call for sites could reveal options not 

previously considered. The viability of development would be key to understanding the 

impact of this option, for example, whether the settlement could be developed to 

generate energy from a renewable source and therefore score more positively than 

other options.

4.2 Biodiversity and Geodiversity (Sustainability objectives 4, 5)

4.2.1 Significant habitats and environmental features are protected by designations, and 

therefore it would not be anticipated that any growth option would cause the loss of 

distinctive natural habitats. In considering the impact of growth on designated sites and 

characteristic habitats and species it is therefore necessary to consider where the most 

24



16 | P a g e

sensitive sites are located to determine the level of disturbance from residents (e.g. 

noise, light pollution, increased vehicular movements, disturbance from pets) and 

whether an increase in the local population is likely to cause an increase in visitor 

numbers to designated sites. 

4.2.2  The natural areas with the highest level of designations in the Borough are located in 

the northern coastal area around The Wash, including Snettisham and Dersingham Bog 

as well as Roydon Common in the centre of the Borough and Welney Washes in the 

south of the Borough. Option 1 focusing growth at King’s Lynn scores poorly against 

these criteria because there are limited areas to develop which could result in a lack of 

provision of new accessible open space and also puts pressure on existing recreational 

areas and at adjacent designated sites such as Roydon Common and Dersingham Bog.

4.2.3  Options for spreading development (2) and the option to focus development in the rural 

areas (3) would have a more positive effect as it would not concentrate growth adjacent 

to sensitive sites.  The effect of a new settlement (4) is unknown as it is dependent on 

where it is located. Option 5, growth in the Wisbech Fringe is scored positively as it is 

distant from any designated sites or protected natural features.

4.3 Landscape, townscape (Sustainability objectives 6, 7, 8)

4.3.1  Local Plan policies should continue to promote development which protects and 

enhances the distinctive townscapes and landscapes of the Borough. All options have 

the potential to create places, spaces and buildings that work well, wear well and look 

good and therefore score positively in this category. 

4.3.2 In considering the outcome of options for growth on the landscape, townscape and 

historic environment it is considered that spreading development more evenly around 

the Borough (option 2) scores positively because it enables a wider choice of sites and a 

lesser concentration of development in one area reducing pressure on selecting sites 

adjacent to, or which affect the setting of historic assets and the wider landscape. The 

east side of Wisbech is not rich in historic assets or a distinctive townscape and 

therefore option 5 also scores positively. There are, however, a few Listed Buildings as 

well as historic orchards in the wider area which may require further assessment to 

25



17 | P a g e

determine their significance as part of the distinctive landscape and to safeguard rare 

species of fruit trees. 

4.3.3   King’s Lynn and West Lynn is rich is historic assets although edge of town expansion to 

the east and south would be less likely to affect buildings and features in the historic 

core of the town. There are some scattered Listed Buildings and an ancient monument 

at Bawsey around the edge of King’s Lynn. The level of growth required in option 1 could 

affect the setting of heritage assets, depending on the location of new allocations and 

therefore the outcome is unknown for this category.  The impact is also unknown for the 

option for a new settlement (4) for the same reason. 

4.3.4 Focusing development in the rural areas could put pressure on distinctive places, historic 

assets and the wider landscape as rural settlements would receive more new housing in 

a relatively short timeframe than in any previous plan period.

4.4 Climate change and pollution (sustainability objectives 9, 10, 11)

4.4.1  All options are likely to increase the level of greenhouse gas emissions, cause increased 

pollution and result in increased production of waste and therefore all score negatively 

for these categories. Concentrating growth adjacent to existing urban areas (options 1 

and 5) increases the opportunities to utilise sustainable transport options and access 

employment and services and facilities. However these options score poorly in terms of 

limiting vulnerability to climate change because the Wisbech Fringe and King’s Lynn area 

are largely at risk of flooding and therefore sequentially are not the best places to locate 

new development. Focusing development in rural areas (option 3) may also put pressure 

on allocating further development to rural settlements at risk of flooding. Spreading 

development more evenly around the Borough (option 2) allows for the greatest choice 

of sites in flood zone 1 (low risk) and therefore this option scores positively.

4.5 Healthy Communities (sustainability objectives 12, 13, 14)

4.5.1  All options are likely to contribute to healthy communities providing the design of the 

development accords with policies in the NPPF and the Local Plan. Designing out crime 

and creating development which promotes walking and cycling are two examples of how 

26



18 | P a g e

new development can create healthy communities. New development provides the 

opportunity to create new publicly accessible open space although the greatest 

opportunities are where large allocations are planned. It is difficult to differentiate 

scoring between different options at a strategic level.

4.6 Inclusive Communities (sustainability objectives 15, 16, 17, 18)

4.6.1 All options are likely to contribute to inclusive communities providing the design of the 

development accords with policies in the NPPF and the Local Plan. Creating 

developments which include a mix of housing spread across the site enables a mix of 

household types in one area therefore promoting social cohesion and avoiding the 

creation of ghettoes or deprived areas. Promoting a mix of housing types enables all 

house buyers to gain access to affordable housing. It is difficult to differentiate scoring 

between different options at a strategic level.

4.7 Economic Activity (sustainability objectives 19, 20)

4.7.1  Options for growth adjacent to King’s Lynn (1) and Wisbech Fringe (2) enable new 

residents to access the largest existing employment areas and therefore these options 

score positively. Spreading development across the Borough (2) also scores positively 

because it concentrates development adjacent to the higher order settlements including 

the Main Towns which is likely to improve the local economies due to an increased 

population. The impact of a new settlement is unknown because it cannot be 

determined whether existing employment areas are easily accessible or whether new 

long term employment opportunities could be developed in the long term. Focusing 

growth in the rural area (option 3) could generate more small business and work from 

home opportunities but would not be as accessible to existing employment areas as 

alternative growth options.

27



19 | P a g e

5. Conclusion

5.1 The initial early stage sustainability appraisal demonstrates that all five of the potential 

growth options score both positively and negatively across the twenty sustainability factors. 

The table below shows the total scores for each growth option.

O
pt

io
n 

1
Ki

ng
’s

 L
yn

n 
Ar

ea

O
pt

io
n 

2
Sp

re
ad

 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
O

pt
io

n 
3

Ru
ra

l F
oc

us

O
pt

io
n 

4
N

ew
 S

et
tle

m
en

t

O
pt

io
n 

5
W

is
be

ch
 F

rin
ge

Total number of Positives (+) +14 +18 +14 +12 +17
Total number of Negatives (-) - 7 -7 -10 -6 -7
Cumulative total of Positives (+) and Negatives (-) +7 +11 +4 +6 +10

5.2 The Sustainability Appraisal, and table above, illustrate that all five potential growth options 

result in overall positive effects; with Option 2 Spread Development Scoring (+11) the 

highest overall and Option 3 Rural Focus (+4) scoring the least positive. Option 5 Wisbech 

Fringe scored the second highest (+10), although there is work progressing in this area, there 

is a degree of uncertainty. Option 1 King’s Lynn Area (+7), scored positively although 

locations for new large scale allocations may be difficult to identify given potential impacts 

upon sites allocated through the Site Allocations and Development Management, and the 

local areas.  Option  4 New Settlement (+6), scores well however there is a degree of 

uncertainty as at this stage a broad location has not been identified.  

5.3 Option 2 Spread Development is the highest scoring option. This demonstrates that an 

option which spreads new growth across the Borough, yet still having regard to CS02 The 

Settlement Hierarchy is a sustainable one. 

5.4 It is considered that the option or an option similar to this would avoid damaging protected 

sites and the historic environment, whilst maintaining and enhancing the diversity and 

distinctiveness of landscape and townscape character. There is also the potential to create 

places, spaces and buildings that work well, wear well, and look good. It could reduce the 

28



20 | P a g e

vulnerability to the effects of climate change (including flooding) when compared to other 

options. It should maintain human health; improve the quantity and quality of publicly 

accessible open space. Improve the quality, range and associability of services and facilities; 

ensure that there is access to decent appropriate and affordable housing. Assist in the 

population gaining access to satisfying work appropriate to their skills, potential and place of 

residence. It could also improve the efficiency, competitiveness and adaptability of the local 

economy. 

5.5 The level of spread is available for discussion; the option presented within this paper has 

regard for a number of key considerations and potential new developments taking place in 

and close to the Borough.  It may also be worth considering other factors such as the impact 

of upgrading of Ely Junction North has in facilitating a half hourly train service for 

settlements with a train station such as Downham Market and Watlington. 

5.6 A spread option would support King’s Lynn as the main settlement within in the Borough, 

yet allow the allocations made through the Site Allocations and Development Management 

Plan, and the local areas they have been attributed to, time and space.  It would support 

Downham Market as the second main town and the proposed Centre for Advanced 

Knowledge and Engineering (CAKE), which is anticipated to generate a large number of jobs. 

Support to the Wisbech Garden City Style urban extension, highlighted with East Anglia 

Devolution proposals would also be provided. The Key Rural Service Centres are supported, 

as these offer a range of services and facilities to their local population which could facilitate 

future growth.  The more rural areas of the Borough are also supported with a portion of the 

growth being attributed to the Rural Villages Borough. 

5.7 It is important to note that this is clearly an early stage; this paper covers high level strategic 

considerations with the intention to encourage discussion as to where the required growth 

(4,000 dwellings) over the Local Plan Review time period (2016 -2036) could potentially be 

accommodated through the site allocation process across the Borough.  

 

29



Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Update

1.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) came into force in April 2010. It allows 

local councils in England and Wales to raise funds from developers starting new building 

projects. The money can be used to fund a wide range of work and services needed to 

support the growth of our Borough. In order to charge a fee, we must produce a charging 

schedule setting out charge rates for this area.

1.2 An initial consultation took place with some developers and interested parties in January 

2014, this helped us to make sure we were on the right track for writing the Charging 

Schedule. The charging schedule then has to have two rounds of public consultations 

before being submitted for Examination by a planning inspector. The first consultation 

was carried out in December 2014 to January 2015; Information and comments provided 

from this consultation helped us to revise our documentation. We then published a Draft 

Charging Schedule, so we could move forward and carry out the final consultation. This 

final consultation took place for a period of 6 weeks, and finished on the 25th of April 

2016.

1.3 In response to this consultation we have asked the Planning Inspectorate to undertake 

an Examination of the CIL Draft Charging Schedule. We formally submitted the Draft 

Charging Schedule on 10 June 2016. Details of the submitted documents can be found 

on our website: http://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/default.aspx?page=28023

1.4 Mr. Philip Staddon (BSc DIP MBA MRTPI) has been appointed as the independent 

Examiner to consider the CIL Charging Schedule. The Planning Inspectorate aim to 

commence the examination approximately 10 weeks after the submission. The precise 

date for the opening of any formal hearing part of the examination into the Charging 

Schedule will be decided by the Examiner. As soon as we have confirmed the date(s) 

and information relating to the examination we will circulate the information to relevant 

parties.

1.5 A Programme Officer, Miss Lesley Morton, has been appointed by the Borough Council. 

Miss Morton can be contacted as follows:  E-Mail: lesley.morton@west-norfolk.gov.uk, 

and Tel: 01553 616819.

30

Agenda Item 7

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil
http://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/default.aspx?page=28023
mailto:lesley.morton@west-norfolk.gov.uk


1

The East of England Forecasting Model (EEFM)

1 The East of England Forecasting Model is a standalone forecasting system to 
guide local authorities and local enterprise partnerships in the region on ‘baseline’ 
economic forecasts with their associated demographic and housing implications; and 
to allow users to generate alternative scenarios.

2 The Model provides economic, demographic and housing forecasts for the 
East of England and its constituent local authorities. These forecasts will not 
necessarily be consistent with adopted policies (e.g. housing targets) unless the 
scenario being tested is defined on that basis.

3 The Model provides a link between housing and the economy. It has 
undergone several improvements and updates since its inception – for example, to 
address the complexity of household formation trends at a time of economic and 
migration change.

4 The EEFM is designed to provide:

 A consistent evidence base for the region, for use in strategy and policy 
development and for testing spatial linkages in economic, demographic and 
housing trends;

 A set of ‘baseline’ forecasts for the region (and beyond, to cover the local 
enterprise partnerships) prepared by a leading independent forecasting house 
(Cambridge Econometrics);

 A means of generating scenarios (alternative future trends);
 A mechanism to raise awareness of new or overlooked issues and linkages 

which might impinge on the success of regional or local policies and 
strategies;

 An information resource collating a wide range of data in a central location 
and in a consistent manner.

5 The modelling approach is based on the following:

 Regional employment forecasts by detailed sector are constrained by UK 
sectoral forecasts 

 UK sectoral forecasts in turn are constrained by global conditions – e.g. 
exchange rates, oil prices, world trade, etc.

 Local employment forecasts are based on an extrapolation of shares of 
regional employment within each sector taking into account:

o changes in population; and 
o changes in appropriate sectors

 Population change depends on the level of unemployment which in turn 
depends simultaneously on employment trends

 Housing demand depends upon population and occupancy trends

31

Agenda Item 8



2

6 One of the uses for the modelling is as a starting point for strategy work 
(planning policy, LEP strategic planning, etc.).  In Norfolk it will influence the 
emerging Norfolk Strategic Framework document that is currently being 
prepared.  The EEFM is primarily a demand-based model and the forecasts are 
policy-neutral i.e. assuming no change to the policy regime reflected in the data 
and not incorporating any speculative plans or strategies.

7 The EEFM is one of a number of forecasts that can influence our scenario 
planning for the new local plan.  The outputs would need to be compared to other 
forecasts such as the 2014-based ONS Population projections that were 
published on 25 May 2016 and the 2014-based ONS Household Projections due 
to be published on 12 July.  Our specialist SHMA/OAN consultants would need to 
provide advice on what the various projections mean for the calculation of the 
Borough’s FOAN.

8 The EEFM 2016 outlook is due to be finalised on 14 July and published on 
their website on 15 July.  The forecasts were prepared prior to the European 
Referendum outcome so are ‘pre-Brexit’ and the Steering Group may decide that 
a ‘Brexit’ scenario needs to be commissioned.

9 The draft outputs for New Anglia LEP show the following changes for the 
Borough:

Variable 2016
(000s)

2036
(000s)

Total 
Increase 

(000s)

Average
p.a.

Population 152.3 176.2 23.9 1,195
Households 65.6 78.4 12.8 640
Dwellings 76.7 91.6 14.9 745

Jobs 68.4 72.9 4.5 225

10 The graph below illustrates household projections for the Borough compared 
to other Norfolk and Suffolk districts.

11 The report on housing need considered by the Cabinet in March 2016 
identified a FOAN for the Borough of between 690 and 710. The Heacham 
inquiry considered housing land supply scenarios based on the Core Strategy 
target of 660 and a FOAN of 710.

12 Members are recommended to note this report.

32



3
33


	Agenda
	2 Notes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	6 Plan  Review - Consideration of Strategic Options for Growth
	7 CIL Update
	8 East of England Forecasting Model - Latest Findings

